
 

 
 
 

                           GUAM COUNCIL ON THE ARTS AND HUMANITIES AGENCY 
     Regular Monthly Board Meeting  

        Tuesday March 12, 2024, at 3:00 pm 
         
                                               AGENDA 

 
I. Call to Order 
II. Roll Call 
III. Approval of Minutes 

• February 2024 
IV. Executive Directors Report 
V. FESTPAC 2024  
VI. Board Action 

• Approval of 13th FestPac Guam Delegation 
VII. Old Business 

• TCDs / Investments (Percent for the Arts funds) 
• Board Retreat 

VIII. New Business 
• Percent of the Arts (GIAA, Bio Lab) 

IX. Announcements 
X. Adjournment (Next Regular Mtg:  April 9, 2024) 

 
 

 



 
 
 
   GUAM COUNCIL ON THE ARTS & HUMANITIES AGENCY 
                                Kahan I Kutturan Guahan 
 

 
 

 
 

P.O. Box 2950, Hagåtña, Guam 96932 • Office: 2nd Floor, DNA Building, Hagatna, Guam 96910 
Ph: (671) 300-1204-8 • Fax: (671) 300-1209 • email: info@caha.guam.gov  •  web: www.guamcaha.org  

 

 
           
                        
                       
           
 

 
GUAM COUNCIL ON THE ARTS AND HUMANITIES AGENCY 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
February 13, 2024 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER  

The Guam Council on the Arts and Humanities Agency’s regular board meeting was called 
to order at 3:07 pm by Chairwoman of the Board, Monica Guzman. 

 
II. ATTENDANCE: 

 
• Board Members in Person:  Monica Guzman (Chair), Max Ronquillo (Vice), Donna 

Kloppenburg 
• Board Members Online: Mayor Jessy Gogue, Frank Rabon, Rolly Zepeda, Simone 

Bollinger 
• Staff:  Acting Executive Director (ED) Angie R. Taitague, Ordilia (Lilly) Cruz, Mark 

Duenas, Mike Mafnas 
• Absent: Board Members: Al Labang 

 
III. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

Donna Kloppenburg makes a motion to approve the minutes based on corrections. Mayor 
Jessy Gogue seconds. 
Motion to approve the minutes based on corrections. Motion Carries 

 

IV. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT:  
 

• Revolving Fund Report / Audit 

 
a. Guam Revolving Checking Account Balance as of February 12, 2024, is fifty-three thousand 

four hundred and forty dollars and thirty-five cents. $53,440.35 
 
 
 

Honorable Lourdes Leon Guerrero 
Maga’ håga’ 
Governor of Guam 

    Honorable Joshua Tenorio 
    Segundo Maga’ lahi 
   Lieutenant Governor of Guam 

      Angie R. Taitague 
      Acting Director 
 

       
 

about:blank
about:blank


 
 
 
   GUAM COUNCIL ON THE ARTS & HUMANITIES AGENCY 
                                Kahan I Kutturan Guahan 
 

 
 

 
 

P.O. Box 2950, Hagåtña, Guam 96932 • Office: 2nd Floor, DNA Building, Hagatna, Guam 96910 
Ph: (671) 300-1204-8 • Fax: (671) 300-1209 • email: info@caha.guam.gov  •  web: www.guamcaha.org  

 

 
 
 

b. FESTPAC Checking Account Balance as of February 12, 2024 is three hundred 
thirty-two thousand four hundred and eighteen dollars and forty-five cents. 
$332,418.45. 

 
c. Percent for the Arts Checking Account Balance as of February 12, 2024, is four 
hundred thirty thousand four hundred fifty-six dollars and seventy-five cents. 
$430,456.75. 

d. Percent for the Arts Saving Account Balance as of February 12, 2024 is One 
million one hundred and twenty-six thousand five hundred and forty-four dollars 
and forty-one cents. $1,126,544.41 

• Percent For the Arts Rules & Regulation:  I am working with the Government of 
Guam Policy office regarding the steps and phases for the amendments. 
• Traditional Master’s Program: I would like to table this until the board action 

section of the meeting. 
• Art Bank: Assessment is ongoing 
• CAHA Website: We are working on changes to the website and adding on a 

FESTPAC button on the home page that will link to FESTPAC information. 
 

V. FESTPAC 

-Feb 15th is the head of delegation town hall meeting via Zoom.  

-Only 4 countries have not responded to the intent to participate 

-Budget has been attached and the CAHA board resolution created will approve the budget 

-Travel deposits were made to United in the amount of $20,000 

-Still awaiting info on staff and board accommodation from Hawaii committee 

-Delegate orientation is scheduled for Feb 17th at the Sinajana mayors arts center 

-Presentation is still scheduled at GMIF may 17-19 

-Media Meeting scheduled for Thursday with PBS 

-Delegate vacant slots have been filled, however there may be a few vacant slots open up 
in the performing arts genre’ 

about:blank
about:blank


 
 
 
   GUAM COUNCIL ON THE ARTS & HUMANITIES AGENCY 
                                Kahan I Kutturan Guahan 
 

 
 

 
 

P.O. Box 2950, Hagåtña, Guam 96932 • Office: 2nd Floor, DNA Building, Hagatna, Guam 96910 
Ph: (671) 300-1204-8 • Fax: (671) 300-1209 • email: info@caha.guam.gov  •  web: www.guamcaha.org  

 

 

 

-Received budgets from Performing Arts, Chant and Culinary still waiting for the other genres 

-Waiting on vendor proposal for sponsorship t-shirts 

-Anticipating RFQs for huts, design, costumes etc.. 

-GVB has agreed to handle FESTPAC procurement 

-After March FESTPAC meetings will be more frequent 

-Community concern requesting the removal of a delegate. Guam CAHA has requested 
legal guidance and review. Until such time there will be no comment on the issue. 

 
VI. Board Action 

-Resolution 2024-001 relative to the Guam CAHA Guam Masters Award nomination 
process in accordance to Title 5 Government operations division Chapter 85A Guam 
Masters Award. Open discussion on past discussion about the program. After discussion it 
was agreed upon that there will be no nomination cap and Guam CAHA will award 4 masters 
to catch up on years 2018-2022. Vice Chair Max Ronquillo makes a motion to allow the 
Board Chair to work with the staff to finalize the resolution and have the bard vote 
electronically to move forward with the agenda. Donna Kloppenburg seconds the motion. 
Motion Carries 
 
-Resolution 2024-002 To approve FESTPAC budget. Vice Chair Max Ronquillo moves to 
adopt Board Resolution 2024-002 pursuant to public law 35-60 authorizing Guam CAHA to 
utilize money collected through the Arts in Public Places program for the 13th FESTPAC in 
Hawaii. Donna Kloppenburg seconds. Motion Carries 
 

VII. OLD BUSINESS 
Acting Executive Director Angie Taitague explains that she has received 3 quotes from 
various banks about their TDC rates. Bank of Guam is at 5%, First Hawaiian Bank is at 1%, 
and Bank Pacific is at 1%. She will be setting up a meeting with Bank of Guam to go over 
the details. Mayor Jessy Gogue motions to invest in multiple TCDs at various time frames. 
$200k in each a 6-month, 12-month 18-month and a 24-month TCD in total of $800,000. 
Vice Chair Max Ronquillo seconds. Motion Carries to invest $800,000 in multiple TCDs. 
 
 
 
 

about:blank
about:blank


 
 
 
   GUAM COUNCIL ON THE ARTS & HUMANITIES AGENCY 
                                Kahan I Kutturan Guahan 
 

 
 

 
 

P.O. Box 2950, Hagåtña, Guam 96932 • Office: 2nd Floor, DNA Building, Hagatna, Guam 96910 
Ph: (671) 300-1204-8 • Fax: (671) 300-1209 • email: info@caha.guam.gov  •  web: www.guamcaha.org  

 

 
 
 

VIII. NEW BUSINESS 

Discussion on board retreat. Board agrees they need a retreat to iron out strategic 
planning for Guam CAHA. Board agrees to wait until August after FESPAC. 

 
IX. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

- FESTPAC orientation Feb 17th at the Sinajana Mayors Art Center 
- Ben Sinahi closing night Feb 23 at 5pm 
- Acting Directors confirmation hearing Feb 14th at 9am 
- New Board Member confirmation hearing Feb 14th at 9am 
- 19th Tumon Bay Music Festival will be held March 7-16th 
- March 16th 130-2pm at ASC a blessing of batons by Master of Chamorro Dance Frank 

Rabon  

 

X. ADJOURNMENT 

At 4:07pm the meeting was moved to adjourn by Vice Chair Max Ronquillo and 
seconded by donna Kloppenburg. All in favor. Meeting Adjourned. 

                       
 
  
                                                                              Date: ______________ 
Secretary, Donna Kloppenburg 
Guam Council on the Arts and Humanities 

 
 
PREPARED BY: 
                                                                              Date: ______________ 
Mike Mafnas PCII 
Guam Council on the Arts and Humanities 
 

 
 

 
 

about:blank
about:blank









	Board of Directors Meeting Agenda    March 2024 .pdf
	Guam CAHA BOD Minutes February 2024
	I. CALL TO ORDER
	The Guam Council on the Arts and Humanities Agency’s regular board meeting was called to order at 3:07 pm by Chairwoman of the Board, Monica Guzman.
	II. ATTENDANCE:
	 Board Members in Person:  Monica Guzman (Chair), Max Ronquillo (Vice), Donna Kloppenburg
	 Board Members Online: Mayor Jessy Gogue, Frank Rabon, Rolly Zepeda, Simone Bollinger
	 Staff:  Acting Executive Director (ED) Angie R. Taitague, Ordilia (Lilly) Cruz, Mark Duenas, Mike Mafnas
	 Absent: Board Members: Al Labang
	III. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	IV. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT:
	 Revolving Fund Report / Audit
	a. Guam Revolving Checking Account Balance as of February 12, 2024, is fifty-three thousand four hundred and forty dollars and thirty-five cents. $53,440.35
	-Received budgets from Performing Arts, Chant and Culinary still waiting for the other genres
	-Waiting on vendor proposal for sponsorship t-shirts
	-Anticipating RFQs for huts, design, costumes etc..
	-GVB has agreed to handle FESTPAC procurement
	-After March FESTPAC meetings will be more frequent
	-Community concern requesting the removal of a delegate. Guam CAHA has requested legal guidance and review. Until such time there will be no comment on the issue.
	VI. Board Action
	-Resolution 2024-001 relative to the Guam CAHA Guam Masters Award nomination process in accordance to Title 5 Government operations division Chapter 85A Guam Masters Award. Open discussion on past discussion about the program. After discussion it was ...
	-Resolution 2024-002 To approve FESTPAC budget. Vice Chair Max Ronquillo moves to adopt Board Resolution 2024-002 pursuant to public law 35-60 authorizing Guam CAHA to utilize money collected through the Arts in Public Places program for the 13th FEST...
	VII. OLD BUSINESS
	Acting Executive Director Angie Taitague explains that she has received 3 quotes from various banks about their TDC rates. Bank of Guam is at 5%, First Hawaiian Bank is at 1%, and Bank Pacific is at 1%. She will be setting up a meeting with Bank of Gu...
	VIII. NEW BUSINESS
	Discussion on board retreat. Board agrees they need a retreat to iron out strategic planning for Guam CAHA. Board agrees to wait until August after FESPAC.
	IX. ANNOUNCEMENTS
	- FESTPAC orientation Feb 17th at the Sinajana Mayors Art Center
	- Ben Sinahi closing night Feb 23 at 5pm
	- Acting Directors confirmation hearing Feb 14th at 9am
	- New Board Member confirmation hearing Feb 14th at 9am
	- 19th Tumon Bay Music Festival will be held March 7-16th
	- March 16th 130-2pm at ASC a blessing of batons by Master of Chamorro Dance Frank Rabon
	X. ADJOURNMENT
	At 4:07pm the meeting was moved to adjourn by Vice Chair Max Ronquillo and seconded by donna Kloppenburg. All in favor. Meeting Adjourned.

	Percent for the Arts GIAA Documents
	Board Newspaper Ad

